
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BIRMINGHAM DISTRICT 

President and Chief Executive Officer 

Dontrelle Young Foster 
January 9, 2023 

Board of Commissioners 
Anthony C. Hood, Chairman 

D.G. Pantazis, Jr., Vice-Chairman

DeJuana J. Thompson, Commissioner 

Abra A. Barnes, Commissioner 

Willie J. Lewis, Commissioner 

Dr. Anthony C. Hood, Chairman 
Mr. D. G. Pantazis, Jr., Vice-Chairman 
Ms. DeJuana L. Thompson, Commissioner 
Ms. Abra A. Barnes, Commissioner 
Ms. Willie J. Lewis, Commissioner 
Birmingham, AL 35233 

NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL MEETING AND REGULAR MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the annual meeting and regular session of the Board of 
Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the Birmingham District will be held at 1 :30 p.m. 

on Thursday, .January 19, 2023, at the George W. McCoy Facility, located at 1301 25th Avenue 
North, Birmingham, Alabama 35204. The meeting will be live streamed via Zoom. To access the 
meeting, go to HABD.org for more information. 

OYF: ab 

Sincerely, 

ff!!!: Yb.st�
President/CEO 

1826 3rd Avenue, South, P.O. Box 55906, Birmingham, Alabama 35255·5906 

Telephone (205) 324-0641 







MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSIONERS FOR THE 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BIRMINGHAM DISTRICT 

HELD ON DECEMBER 15, 2022 
  
The Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the Birmingham District met in a regular session 
at 1:30 p.m. on December 15, 2022, at the George W. McCoy Facility located in Birmingham, 
Alabama. The meeting was called to order by Chairman Hood, and upon roll call, those present 
and absent were as follows: 
   
   
 PRESENT: 
 
  Anthony C. Hood, Chairman 

D. G. Pantazis, Jr., Vice Chairman 
Abra A. Barnes, Commissioner 

   
   ABSENT: 
 

DeJuana J. Thompson, Commissioner 
 

VIRTUAL: 
 

Willie J. Lewis, Commissioner 
 
 ALSO, PRESENT: 
      
  Dontrelle Foster, President/CEO 
  Seth Embry, Chief Operating Officer 
  Denita Bearden, Chief Administrative Officer 
  Courtney French, General Counsel 
  Ken Foreman, Director of Community Safety 
  Christie Hilliard, Project Manager 
  Kangi Drake, Director of Rental Assistance Programs 
  James Hawkins, Project Manager 
  Connie McLaurin, Director of Maintenance 
  Calandra Jefferson-Mitchell, Director of Human Capital 
  Jacqueline French, Director of Workforce Development 
  Celine Nkashama, Finance Manager 
  Meagan Holland, Director of Public Relations 
  Armon Matthews, Interim VP of Community Engagement 
  Tara Cook, Community 
  Will Lewis, MRI 
  Toraine Clausell, Director of Information Infrastructure 
  Michelle Collins, Executive Assistant 
  Alicia Bibbs, Executive Office Coordinator 
 



2 
 
 

 

Chairman Hood declared a quorum was present.  
 
A moment of silence was observed. 
 
Adoption of Agenda 
 
Chairman Hood acknowledged the adoption of the agenda. The agenda was adopted as presented. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Chairman Hood acknowledged the approval of the consent agenda. There was no objection to the 
consent agenda, and upon motion by Vice-Chairman Pantazis and seconded by Commissioner 
Barnes, the consent agenda was approved as presented. 
 

a. The Minutes for the Regular Meeting on November 17, 2022, were approved. 
 

b. The President’s Report was accepted. 
 

c. Presentation of the Cumulative Low-Income Housing Financial Report for the period 
ending November 31, 2022, was accepted. 

 
When called upon, the following voted as indicated: 

 
 YEA     NAY    ABSTAINED  

 Chairman Hood 
 Vice Chairman Pantazis 
 Commissioner Barnes 
  

Chairman Hood indicated motion carried. 
 
 
Old Business 
 
For old business, President Foster updated the Board on concerns that the residents of Elyton 
Village presented. President Foster noted that the residents’ concerns were addressed, and the 
matter regarding the leaky ceiling was resolved. A written request to meet with President Foster 
was submitted by Ms. Willine Body, the President of Elyton Resident Council, to discuss the 
Choice Neighborhood grant and future plans of Elyton Village. Ms. Foster responded with a letter 
to request meeting availability. Staff was to follow up with Ms. Body and the Resident Council to 
schedule the meeting based on their availability.  
 
New Business 
 
For new business, President Foster gave a brief report on the HABD 29th Annual Employee 
Recognition Service Award which recognized employees with 5 - 45 years of service, retirees, and 
a special award to Morrell Todd Homes staff for their outstanding REAC score.   



3 

HABD was awarded a ROSS Grant that would be used to provide salaries for staff and support 
services to assess the needs of the residents of public housing.  

HABD and the City of Birmingham partnered to facilitate a final community meeting to discuss 
the Choice Neighborhood Implementation Grant at Smithfield to share in-depth information on 
how HABD will be moving forward with the grant. 

Also, for new business, Ms. Foster introduced the new HABD employee Ms. Melanie Baker, 
Interim Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Baker shared her background with the Board and stated that 
she looks forward to future successes with the agency. Chairman Hood welcomed Ms. Baker to 
the agency.  

President Foster congratulated Chairman Hood and Attorney French for receiving the 
Champion Award from the Birmingham Realtist Association. 

The Board congratulated President Foster for being selected as a finalist for the CEO Award with 
the Birmingham Business Journal. 

Rental Assistance Program 

1. Approval to revise the Section 8 Utility Allowances

The Director of Rental Assistance Programs, Ms. Kangi Drake, presented a request to
revise the Housing Authority of the Birmingham District’s Utility Allowances. Ms. Drake
indicated that HUD regulation requires that all PHAs conduct a utility allowance review
annually and revise the allowances for a utility category if there has been a change of 10%
or more in the utility rate since the last time the utility allowance was revised. The last
utility allowance study was updated in November 2021. There were changes to 6 utility
categories with a 10% increase. Therefore, an update was required to HABD’s Section 8
Utility Allowances. After a brief discussion and upon motion by Vice Chairman Pantazis
and seconded by Commissioner Barnes, the following resolution was unanimously
adopted:

RESOLUTION NO. 12616 

RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
Birmingham District that the Chairman be and he is authorized to execute the 
documents for approval of the implementation of the revised Section 8 Utility 
Allowance Schedule. 

RESOLVED FURTHER that the President/CEO be and he hereby is authorized to 
implement the revision of the Section 8 Utility Allowance Schedule effective 
January 1, 2023. 

When called upon, the following voted as indicated: 



4 
 
 

 

 
 YEA     NAY    ABSTAINED  

 Chairman Hood 
 Vice Chairman Pantazis 
 Commissioner Barnes 
  

           Chairman Hood indicated motion carried. 
 

2. Approval to revise the Section 8 Utility Allowances, Gadsden Area  
 

The Director of Rental Assistance Programs, Ms. Kangi Drake, presented a request to 
revise the Housing Authority of the Birmingham District’s Utility Allowance schedule 
approved by the Greater Gadsden Area Housing Authority (GGHA). HABD administers 
six (6) HUD- VASH vouchers in the Gadsden Area in Etowah County. HABD must use 
the utility allowance schedule that is in effect in the area and by the Greater Gadsden 
Housing Authority. Upon motion by Vice Chairman Pantazis and seconded by 
Commissioner Barnes, the following resolution was unanimously adopted:  
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 12617 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
Birmingham District that the Chairman be and he is authorized to execute the 
documents for approval of the implementation of the revised Section 8 Utility 
Allowances Schedule 2023 Gadsden.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the President/CEO be and he hereby is authorized to 
implement the revision of the Section 8 Utility Allowances Schedule 2023 Gadsden 
effective January 1, 2023. 
 

When called upon, the following voted as indicated: 
 

 YEA     NAY    ABSTAINED  
 Chairman Hood 
 Vice Chairman Pantazis 
 Commissioner Barnes 
  

           Chairman Hood indicated motion carried. 
 

3. Approval to 2023 Exception Payment Standard 
 

Ms. Kangi Drake presented a request to revise and update the Exception Payment Standard 
at 120% of fair market rents (FMR), effective December 1, 2022. HUD publishes FMRs 
effective October 1st of each year. PHA’s are to analyze the current payment standards and 
the percentage to determine whether it requires an update and to comply no later than 90 
days following the effective date. HUD approved a waiver submitted by HABD to extend 
the exception payment standard at 120% to December 31, 2023. Implementing the 



5 
 
 

 

exception payment standard provides an opportunity to reduce financial hardship for 
program participants and create opportunity for families to search for housing in higher 
opportune areas. After a brief discussion and upon motion by Commissioner Barnes and 
seconded by Vice Chairman Pantazis, the following resolution was unanimously adopted:  
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 12618 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
Birmingham District that the Chairman is authorized to execute the documents for 
approval of the Adoption of the 2023 Exception Payment Standards. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the President/CEO is hereby authorized to implement 
the adoption of the 2023 Exception Payment Standard effective December 1, 2022. 
 

When called upon, the following voted as indicated: 
 

 YEA     NAY    ABSTAINED  
 Chairman Hood 
 Vice Chairman Pantazis 
 Commissioner Barnes 
  

           Chairman Hood indicated motion carried. 
 

4. Approval to 2023 Exception Payment Standard for Small Area Fair Market Rents 
(FMRs) 

 
The Director of Rental Assistance Programs, Ms. Kangi Drake, presented a request to 
revise and update the exception payment standard at 120% for FY 2023’s Small Area Fair 
Market Rents (SAFMR) effective December 1, 2022. SAFMRs are calculated for zip codes 
within metropolitan areas. The use of these excepted SAFMRs is expected to give HCV 
participants access to areas of high opportunity and lower poverty areas by providing a 
subsidy that is adequate to cover rents in those areas. HUD approved a waiver by HABD 
to extend exception payment standards for SAFMRs to December 31, 2023. Upon a motion 
by Commissioner Barnes and seconded by Vice Chairman Pantazis, the following 
resolution was unanimously adopted:  
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 12619 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
Birmingham District that the Chairman be and he is authorized to execute the 
documents for the approval of the Adoption of the 2023 Exception Payment 
Standards for Small Area Fair Market Rents (SAFMRs). 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the President/CEO is authorized to implement the 
adoption of the 2023 Exception Payment Standards for Small Area Fair Market 
Rents (SAFMRs) effective December 1, 2022. 



6 
 
 

 

 
When called upon, the following voted as indicated: 
 

 YEA     NAY    ABSTAINED  
 Chairman Hood 
 Vice Chairman Pantazis 
 Commissioner Barnes 
  

           Chairman Hood indicated motion carried. 
 

5. Approval of Voucher Payment Standards, Gadsden Area MSA 
 

Ms. Kangi Drake presented a request for approval to establish a revised Section 8 Voucher 
Payment Standards schedule that reflects 105 % of the current FMRs for the six (6) HUD 
– VASH vouchers for Gadsden, Alabama Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). Upon 
motion by Commissioner Barnes and seconded by Vice Chairman Pantazis, the following 
resolution was unanimously adopted:  
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 12620 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
Birmingham District that the Chairman be and he is authorized to execute the 
documents for approval of the implementation of the revised Section 8 Voucher 
Payment Standard Schedule, Gadsden Area MSA. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the President/CEO be and he hereby is authorized to 
implement the revision of the Section 8 Voucher Payment Standard Schedule, 
Gadsden Area MSA, effective January 1, 2023. 
 

When called upon, the following voted as indicated: 
 

 YEA     NAY    ABSTAINED  
 Chairman Hood 
 Vice Chairman Pantazis 
 Commissioner Barnes 
  

           Chairman Hood indicated motion carried. 
 
Real Estate Development and Capital Improvements 
 

1. Approval of Development Agreement and Predevelopment Loan with Paces 
Foundation/SOHO Housing 
 
Ms. Christie Hilliard, Project Manager, presented a request to approve a Master 
Development Agreement and Predevelopment Loan Agreement not to exceed $500,000 
with Paces Foundation and SOHO Housing for the redevelopment of Cooper Green and 



7 
 
 

 

Rev. Dr. Morrell Todd Homes. Ms. Hilliard indicated that the Board of Commissioners 
approved the preliminary business terms with PACES for the redevelopment of the Cooper 
Green and Todd Homes. HABD’s Real Estate Counsel has negotiated and reviewed a 
development agreement to incorporate the business terms. Vice Chairman Pantazis 
inquired as to what is the obligation of HABD under this Master Development Agreement. 
Attorney Evans indicated that the development agreement allows HABD to adhere to the 
negotiated business terms and recommendations, and that HUD guidelines are followed.  
 
President Foster added that the document was going through both attorneys to provide the 
language to the agreement before it was executed. Vice Chairman Pantazis asked President 
Foster to clarify what was being asked of the Board to approve. President Foster responded 
that the Board is being asked to allow the attorneys to negotiate the business terms and to 
provide the language into the document so a final draft could be prepared for the Board to 
review.  
 
Chairman Hood inquired as to why this step was necessary. Ms. Hilliard stated this step 
was necessary because of the predevelopment loan agreement, which is part of the master 
development terms. After the discussion, the Board recommended to amend the resolution 
to authorize an obligation for the predevelopment loan agreement and bring back a final 
redlined/cleaned document of the master development agreement for the Board to review. 
Attorney French asked Attorney Evans approximately how long he anticipates having a 
draft agreement ready for the Board to review with the language negotiated with the 
appropriate parties. Attorney Evans responded an agreement could be prepared within the 
next 30 days; however, the timeline that was expressed to him was that it needed to be 
signed by the end of the year, which was why it was added to the agenda. President Foster 
noted that because of the assessments completed from Marks Village and the 
predevelopment loan agreement had not been brought to the Board, they wanted to bring 
all four items to the Board at the same time. Vice Chairman Pantazis added that he would 
like the Board to have some input on the master development agreement and a draft 
agreement to review before the next Board meeting. After the discussion, upon motion by 
Vice Chairman Pantazis and seconded by Commissioner Barnes, the following resolution 
was adopted:  
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 12621 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
Birmingham District to approve a predevelopment loan not to exceed $500,000 per 
project with Paces/SOHO for the redevelopment of Cooper Green and Todd Homes 
in the final legal format as approved by Real Estate Legal Counsel. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER by the Board of Commissions to table the development 
agreement with Paces/SOHO for Cooper Green and Todd Homes until the Board 
has reviewed the development agreement. 
 

When called upon, the following voted as indicated: 
 



8 
 
 

 

 YEA     NAY    ABSTAINED  
 Chairman Hood 
 Commissioner Lewis 
 Commissioner Barnes 
  

           Chairman Hood indicated motion carried. 
 

2. Approval of Development Agreement and Predevelopment Loan with Integral/Rule 
 
Ms. Christie Hilliard presented a request to approve a Master Development Agreement and 
Predevelopment Loan Agreement with Integral and Rule Enterprise for the redevelopment 
of Smithfield Court and Tom Brown Village. Ms. Hilliard indicated that this board action 
was similar to the previous one; however, the Board recommended to amend the resolution 
to authorize the predevelopment loan agreement not to exceed $500,000 for Smithfield 
Court and Tom Brown Village and to table the approval of the master development 
agreement until a later date. Chairman Hood suggested they may need another work session 
that includes Attorney Evans and Cindi Herrera to get further clarification. After a brief 
discussion, upon motion by Vice Chairman Pantazis and seconded by Commissioner 
Barnes, the following resolution was adopted:  
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 12622 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
Birmingham District approve a predevelopment loan not to exceed $500,000 per 
project with Integral/Rule for the redevelopment of Smithfield Court and Tom 
Brown Village in a final legal format as approved by the Real Estate Legal Counsel. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER by the Board of Commissions to table the development 
agreement with Integral/Rule for Smithfield Court and Tom Brown Village until 
the Board has reviewed the development agreement.  

 
3. Approval of Predevelopment Loan with Gorman and Company 

 
Ms. Christie Hilliard presented a request to approve a Predevelopment Loan Agreement 
with Gorman and Company for the redevelopment of Marks Village. President Foster noted 
that nothing had been signed for Marks Village. The document was uploaded to the Board’s 
Google drive for their review. After a brief discussion, upon motion by Vice Chairman 
Pantazis and seconded by Commissioner Barnes, the following resolution was adopted:  
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 12623 
 

RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
Birmingham District approve a predevelopment loan not to exceed $500,000 with 
Gorman and Company for the redevelopment of Marks Village in a final legal 
format as approved by the Real Estate Legal Counsel. 

 



9 
 
 

 

Presentation of Person(s) Desiring to Speak before the Board 
 
Chairman Hood acknowledged persons desiring to speak before the Board. There were no speakers 
to come before the Board.  
 
Executive Session 
 
Chairman Hood acknowledged the executive session to discuss ongoing personnel matters. 
Attorney French acknowledged the subject matter was appropriate under Alabama Code 36-25A-
7 for an executive session to discuss personnel matters. Upon motion by Commissioner Barnes 
and seconded by Vice Chairman Pantazis, the Board went into executive session for approximately 
30 minutes.  
 

When called upon, the following voted as indicated: 
 

 YEA     NAY    ABSTAINED 
 Chairman Hood 
 Vice Chairman Pantazis 
      Commissioner Barnes 

 
Commissioner Lewis attended the executive session virtually. 
 
Chairman Hood indicated motion carried.  
 
After the executive session, Chairman Hood called the meeting back to order.  
 
There was no further business to come before the Board; upon motion, the meeting was duly 
adjourned. 
 
 

_                 ______                                      
                       Chairman   

_______________________________                          
 
      _______________________________ 
 
      _______________________________ 
 
      _______________________________ 
ATTEST: 
                                        _______     
                                    Secretary  
























































	Notice
	Agenda
	Minutes of Regular Meeting, December 15, 2022
	President/CEO's Report
	Financial Statements Report
	Charge-Offs for PE November 30, 2022
	Approval of Revision of Section 3 Policy
	Approval of Development Agreement with Integral/Rule
	Approval of Development Agreement with Paces Presevation Partners
	Approval to Close Southtown Family Housing
	Approval to Close Southtown Senior Housing



